
 

 

  April 28 , 202 2 

Meeting of the Board of Directors  

 



 
 

2 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda  
Meeting of the Board of Directors  

 

Agenda  

One Maritime Plaza , 2nd Floor, Classrooms A & B  

Thursday , April  28, 20 22, at 8:00 a .m.  

 

I. 

 

Call to Order 

Page No. 

II. Roll Call  

III. Public Comment Period  

IV. Report and Communications from the Chair: David Fleetwood  

V. Report of the President and CEO: Thomas J. Winston  

VI. Consent Agenda  

 A. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes: March 24, 2022 4-8 

 B. Operating Results through March 2022 9-19 

 C. Consider Lease with Toledo Metropolitan Council of Governments for 

Office Space at Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza 

20-21 

 D. Consider Rejection of Bids for Component 2: Reconstruction of Dock 

Face - Phase 3 at Facility No. 1 

22-23 

 E. Consider Construction Contract for Seal South Cargo Apron Pavement 

Surface and Pavement Joints at Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express 

Airport (Scodeller Constructions) 

24-26 

 F. Financing Programs Dashboard 27 

 G. BetterBuildings Northwest Ohio Dashboard 28 

 H. Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Trustee Report 29 

 I. Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport Statistics 30 

 J. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza Passenger Statistics 31 

 K. Diversified Contractors Accelerator Program Report 

 

 

 

32 



 
 

3 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda  
Meeting of the Board of Directors  

 

VII. Recommendations and Reports from Standing Committees   

 A. Finance & Development Committee: John S. Szuch. chair  

 1.  Consider Issuance of Tax Exempt Development Revenue Bonds to 
Finance the Costs of Acquiring, Constructing, Developing, 
Equipping, Improving, and Installing Port Authority Facilities in 
Support of Toledo School for The Arts in Toledo, Ohio ($5 million) 

33-46 

 2.  Consider Issuance of Revenue Bonds to Finance the Costs of 
Acquiring, Constructing, Improving, Equipping, and Installing Port 
Authority Facilities in Support of Fountain Place, LLC ($7 million) 

47-60 

 3.  Consider Issuance of Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds to Fund the 
Acquisition and Construction of Medical Office Building and Related 
Improvements Located Within Sylvania Township in the City of 
Toledo, Ohio ($3 million) 

61-73 

 4.  Consider Grant Agreement with Ohio Environmental Protection 

Agency for Facility No. 3 Improvements - Engineering, Design, and 

Construction 

74-77 

 5.  Consider Consent to Sublease and Agreement with Midwest 
Terminals of Toledo-International 

78-81 

 B. Planning & Operations Committee: William J. Carroll, chair  

 C. Government, Community & Human Relations Committee: David P. 
Mann, chair  
 

 

 1.  Consider Community Economic Development Initiative Grant for St. 
Paulôs Community Center 

82-83 

  a. Exhibit A  84-89 

VIII. Executive Session as authorized under Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22(G)(1) to consider the employment of a public employee 

 

IX. Other Business  

X. Adjournment  



  
 

4 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( A) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

Meeting Minutes  of the Board of Directors  

Thursday, March 24 , 20 22  

 
ROLL CALL 
  

The second meeting in 2022 of the Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority Board of Directors 
was called to order virtually via Zoom at 8:01 a.m. on Thursday, March 24, 2022. Attendance was 
taken by roll call: Chair David Fleetwood-present in person; Vice-Chair Robin Whitney-present; 
Wayne Blanchard-absent; William J. Carroll-present; Christine M. Castellano-present; Suzette R. 
Cowell-present; Kimberly M. Cutcher-absent; Amy L. Hall-present; Jonathan M. Lyons-present; 
David P. Mann-absent; Nadeem S. Salem- present; Sharon Speyer-present; and John S. Szuch-
present 

 
All members, except as noted, were present via video conference or teleconference. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
 Chair Fleetwood requested comments from the public. Hearing none, he proceeded with 
the order of business.  

REPORT AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIR: DAVID FLEETWOOD 
 

Chair Fleetwood announced that in-person meetings of the Board of Directors would 
resume in April. 

 
Director Cutcher joined the meeting in progress 
 

A. Presentation by Lance Woodworth, President & CEO of Destination Toledo 

 
Chair Fleetwood introduced Lance Woodworth, President & CEO of Destination Toledo, 
who provided an overview of Destination Toledo and the economic impact of visitorsô 
spending in Lucas County. 
 
Director Blanchard joined the meeting progress. 
 

REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT AND CEO: THOMAS J. WINSTON 
 

Mr. Winston thanked Mr. Woodworth for working to make Toledo a destination of choice. 
 
Mr. Winston reported that the Toledo Innovation Center financing closed in collaboration 

with multiple partners, including $11 million from the Northwest Ohio Bond Fund. He stated that 
the project will be catalytic for the community. He thanked Mr. Teamer for his work on the project 
on behalf of the Port Authority.  

 
Mr. Winston further reported that at least two bond fund projects are expected to be 

considered at the next meeting of the Board. 
 
Finally, Mr. Winston reported the success of the Allegiant to Phoenix-Mesa Gateway 

Airport out of Toledo Express, noting 166 enplanements and 177 passengers returning on the 



  
 

5 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( A) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

inaugural flights. He thanked the Communications and Airport teams, as well as the Airport 
vendors and tenants, for their work making the inaugural flight celebration a success.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 Chair Fleetwood presented the following Consent Agenda, copies having been distributed 
in advance to all directors, and asked if there were any comments or questions. Hearing none, 
upon motion made by Director Carroll to adopt the Consent Agenda and seconded by Director 
Cutcher, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes; Whitney-yes; 
Blanchard-yes; Carroll-yes; Castellano-yes; Cowell-yes; Cutcher-yes; Hall-yes; Lyons-yes; 
Salem-yes; Speyer-yes; and Szuch-yes; thus, the Consent Agenda was unanimously adopted as 
submitted. 
 

A. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes: February 24, 2022   Motion 
 
B. Final Expenditures through December 2021    Motion   
 

C. Consider Transfer of Funds       8-22 
 

D. Expenditures through February 2022      Motion 
 

E. Financing Programs Dashboard 
 

F. BetterBuildings Northwest Ohio Dashboard 
 

G. Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Trustee Report 
 

H. Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport Statistics 
 

I. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza Passenger Statistics 
 

J. Diversified Contractors Accelerator Program Report 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS FROM STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
FINANCE & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Director Szuch, Chair of the Finance & Development Committee, reported that 2021 
ended strong financially. 

  
1. CONSIDER GRANT AGREEMENT WITH U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

AGENCY GREAT LAKES NATIONAL PROGRAM OFFICE  FOR DELAWARE 
ISLANDS COMPLEX RESTORATION - ENGINEERING, DESIGN, AND 
CONSTRUCTION 

 
Director Szuch reported that the Port Authority has been working with the Ohio 
Department of Natural Resources on several H2Ohio projects, including the design and 
engineering of a restoration project at Clark Island. The Delaware Islands Complex is 
located immediately upstream of Clark Island, adjacent to the City of Toledoôs Walbridge 
Park, the Toledo Sailing Club, and the Maumee River Yacht Club, and that due to the 



  
 

6 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( A) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

proximity of the Delaware Islands Complex to Clark Island, there are opportunities for 
combined benefits by coordinating the design work for both projects including water quality 
improvement, improved fisheries, and ecological benefits. Through the Great Lakes 
National Program Office program, the Delaware Islands project is expected to receive a 
total of $5.4 million via a Great Lakes Restoration Initiative Area of Concern non-
competitive grant allocation which would be used for engineering, design, and construction 
related to the restoration of the Delaware Islands Complex and be awarded to the Port 
Authority.  
 
The Finance & Development Committee recommended adoption of a resolution 
authorizing the President to enter into all agreements necessary to accept the grant funds 
and to execute any agreements with the City of Toledo, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, or the State of Ohio that may be required for the 
Port Authority to administer the project. The Committee further recommended authorizing 
the President to enter into agreements with engineering and design consultants and 
contractors to facilitate the project in accordance with the requirements of the grant and 
the Port Authorityôs selection process. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion made by Director Speyer and seconded by Director 
Cutcher, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes; Whitney-
yes; Blanchard-yes; Carroll-yes; Castellano-yes; Cowell-yes; Cutcher-yes; Hall-yes; 
Lyons-yes; Salem-yes; Speyer-yes; and Szuch-yes; thus,  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 9 -22  

AUTHORIZING GRANT AGREEMENT WITH U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION AGENCY GREAT LAKES NATIONAL PROGRAM OFFICE  

 FOR DELAWARE ISLANDS COMPLEX RESTORATION - ENGINEERING, 

DESIGN, AND CONS TRUCTION   

 

was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 
 

2. CONSIDER INVESTMENT IN NORTHWEST OHIO BOND FUND  
 
Director Szuch recalled that in 1987, the Port Authority established the Northwest Ohio 
Bond Fund (ñBond Fundò) as the first municipal bond fund operated by a port authority in 
the state of Ohio to promote economic development to create and retain quality private 
and public sector jobs and investment primarily in Northwest Ohio. He reported that the 
Bond Fund currently holds an ñA- ñcredit rating from Standard & Poorôs Global Ratings, 
and that through recent credit reports, the agency highlights the Bond Fundôs strong 
portfolio of projects, as well as the management of the Bond Fund by the staff and its 
advisors. The agency also indicated that certain counterparty risk has prevented it from 
raising the investment rating of the fund. However, Standard & Poorôs noted that if the 
composition of the Bond Fund reserves changes substantially, such as to mitigate 
counterparty risk, it would consider raising the rating level from the current ñA- ñstatus.  
 
The Finance & Development Committee recommended adoption of a resolution 
authorizing the appropriation of $3 million from Port Authority reserves and the further 



  
 

7 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( A) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

commitment of $400,000 annually over the next five years to be contributed to the 
Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Reserves in support of economic development projects. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion made by Director Cutcher and seconded by Director 
Speyer, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes; Whitney-
yes; Blanchard-yes; Carroll-yes; Castellano-yes; Cowell-yes; Cutcher-yes; Hall-yes; 
Lyons-yes; Salem-yes; Speyer-yes; and Szuch-yes; thus,  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 10 -22  

 

AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT IN NORTHWEST OHIO BOND FUND  

 

was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 

 
PLANNING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

 
Director Carroll, Chair of the Planning & Operations Committee, reported that the statistic 
reports for each facility show that they are performing well. He then asked Mr. Cappel for 
an update on the Airport Action Plan. 
 
Mr. Cappel provided an overview of such Plan, beginning with the growth of air service 
through the new Phoenix route, and introduced the Travel Cost Calculator and Destination 
Request Page, each on the Airportôs website. He also reported an increase in air service. 
 
Mr. Cappel addressed increased cargo at Grand Aire and continued partnership with the 
Amazon Gateway operation, which just celebrated its one-year anniversary at Toledo 
Express. 
 
Mr. Cappel further reported on the industrial development at Toledo Express, including an 
update to the Master Plan, the submission of the Capital Improvement Program through 
2031 to the Federal Aviation Administration, and the recent allocation of funding to 
upgrade the runway to a CAT 3. 

 
1. CONSIDER CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR COMPONENT 3: RECONSTRUCTION 

OF DOCK FACE ï ELECTRICAL AT FACILITY NO. 1 
 
Director Carroll reported that bids were received for Component 3 of the Reconstruction 
of Dock Face project, which includes modifying and upgrading site electrical components, 
upgrading lighting, and providing geographic information system for installed underground 
utilities at Facility No. 1. The project will be funded through the $16 million U.S. Department 
of Transportation Maritime Administration (MARAD) Port Infrastructure Development 
Program (PIDP) grant and the $4 million Maritime Assistance Program (MAP) grant.  
 
The Planning & Operations Committee recommended adoption of a resolution authorizing 
the President to enter into a contract with US Utility Contractor Co. in the amount of 
$1,285,978.95, which includes the base and alternate bids 1 through 3, and authorizing 
payment, including up to a 10% contingency, as described above. 
 



  
 

8 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( A) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

Following discussion, upon motion made by Director Speyer and seconded by Director 
Castellano, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes; 
Whitney-yes; Blanchard-yes; Carroll-yes; Castellano-yes; Cowell-yes; Cutcher-yes; Hall-
yes; Lyons-yes; Salem-yes; Speyer-yes; and Szuch-yes; thus,  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 11 -22  

 

AUTHORIZING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR COMPONENT  3: 

RECONSTRUCTION OF DOCK FACE ð ELECTRICAL AT FACILITY NO. 1  

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority.  

 

GOVERNMENT, COMMUNITY & HUMAN RELATIONS COMMITTEE  

 
No report 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 
 None 

     
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:43 a.m. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 

9 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( B) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

Operating Results through March 2022  

The Operating Statements through March 2022 show $643,400 excess operating 

revenue over operating expense. This is ahead of budget by $433,600 with expenses 

over budget by $16,900 and revenue coming in ahead of budget by $450,500. 

Airport Division revenues of $1,207,800 were $123,800 ahead of budget with most 

revenue categories ahead of budget. Airport expenses of $1,304,900 were over budget 

by $113,600 with repairs and maintenance being the main reason. Seaport Division 

revenues of $441,600 were slightly ahead of budget. Seaport expenses of $147,600 were 

under budget by $37,900, with all expense categories falling under budget. Facilities and 

Development Division revenues of $1,920,300 were $324,000 ahead of budget with other 

rental and fee income being the reason. Facilities and Development expenses of 

$1,473,900 were under budget by $58,800 with most expense categories falling under 

budget.  

The 2022 Operating Budget estimates a fund balance of $2,208,748 by the end of 

the year.   



  
 

10 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( B) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

 

 



  
 

11 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( B) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

 

 

 



  
 

12 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( B) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

Total Operating Budget  

March 2022  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 

13 

April 28, 2022 

Agenda Item  VI ( B) 
 Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

Airport Operating Budget  

March 2022  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
















































































































































